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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE ; N
fxcerpts from Newark Jaily Advertiser arts, "It stands in a promi. SN
position commanding a view of the broad expanse of country for man 16§ S

in every direction, and the approach to it gives a pleasant effect’
solidity and symmetrical proportioas. It is a florid Gothic struct

tower in froat 100 feet high, surmounted by pinnacles, consists of a nave
and aisles, chaacel, tower and south porch. The body of the church is 86
feet long and 86 feet wide: chaacel 43 feet by 23: tower 21 feet square,
and 100 feet high making a total leagth of about 150 feet, built of Little
Falls stone. The iaterior preseats a spacious and chesrful room, without
galleries, relieved of any sepulchral effect by the unobtrusively rich
stained glass wiadows, which temper the atmosphere iato a soft mellow
tone, without excluding too much light. The pews are iavitingly arraaged
aad cushioned with red, the carpets being of the same general tone. The
pulpit is of elaborately carved oak, the wood work of the organ loft over
the front vestibule and seats being of the same material. In the evening
it is lighted with gas from side brackets, and gilt candelabra, with five
burners each, rising at convenient intervals between the pews".

The follosing is a description by Keaneth B. 3chnall, in his 1965 Thesis,
"19th Century Churches of Wewark"./ "The church is Jdesignea as a rectangulan
shape with the placement of the tower, piers aad chancel in a style similar
to the Znglish fourteeath ceatury decorative period. The building is con-
structed entirely of a hand-cut stone in an approximate facsimile of a
Flemish bond. A centrally located ,tower on the facade is Norman in style
with some early English elements,,/The building is on an east-west axis

and has its froat doors on a level with the sidewalk. The nave and rear
addition reach back and down the steep hill so that the building appears

to be quite large. The interior of the church is not very large". The
noted John Jelch's fine original squared "east end" was eliminated, uafor-
tunately, by the also noted Carrere aid Hastings. "The rear lecture hall
built in 1890, begins at the ead of the side walls. Z£ven though the rear
buildiag appears to be a large transept, it is in fact a separate building.
The original part of the building extends from the froat tower to the rear
w#all of the nave which serves as a ceatral pulpit area.# The eatire rear of
the builuing is in effect a separate buildiag and contains rooms used for
offices with a large lecture room in the upper stories that run at a high
angle to the church nave., This building is constructed of brick aad is
faced witn a browastone similar to those found in the facade., Entrance to
the building is provided from the anave and through separate outside doors.
A cornerstoie on the southeast corner bears the date 1890. A real attempt
was made to use a facing stone like that found in the facade so that no real]
contrast exists. / The center tower fully dominates the entire facade. It isl
large in relation to the width of the church but some compensation is made
for this through the use of various architectural elements. The addition
has an eaormous rose wiadow with thick stone tracery that adds distinction
to the loag exposed side of the church which fully covers its corner lot.
The set-offs on tne long buttresses at each coraer have sharp weather plates.
These buttresses taper at the ends and contiaue on up to pianacles which end
in crocketed finials. The flat areas of the tower w.lls are brokea oa all
sides ia the belfry by a deep-sst wiadow with a steep sill.J The siadows
have heavy mullions, hood moldings, aad are lined with crockets. An opea (Jon't.)
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE . .
The chief significance, among magy factors, is architectural as an extra-

ordinarily artistic work of two natioually know architects; <Jeha welch
of Newark, 1850-52 and addition of 1690 by Carrere & Hastiags. In additiod,
the church has served a valuable religious and other varied outreach role
for uifferent congregations. [The original High Street Presbyterian ChurchJ
which reportedly ceased in 1926, another congregation, believed to be Germ
Lutheran, according to a clergymaa, aad since sometime after dorld wWar II
has besn the St. James' A.M.&. Church,) The latter, a black coangregation
esseatially, is an iaflueatial church ia the city and a key church within
its denomination. Important denominational coaferences have beea held in
the church on various occasions. St. James' community outreach includes
active couaselling, diversified music, a credit uaion and housing spon-
sorship.

#The church is strategically situated on a hill overlookiang downtoun Newarkf
disgonally opposite another great landmark, the turreted Krueger-Scott

- Mansion,

The Newark Daily Advertiser, liay 19, 1852, regarding the previous day's
dedication, commented, excarpts, " aa important monumeat of architectural
skill, Its uistinguishing merit is perhaps the completeness of the miaute
details, a merit seldom if ever fully carried out in specimeans of the

more elaborate styles adopted in this country, shere these necessary little
adjuncts to a harmoaious whole, are often sacrificed to economy, It is
on the whole, the most complete specimen of its style we have seen in the
state. The architect is lir. John welch of this city, #ho has certainly
dons himself great credit." Many works by Upjoua, #ills, Lafever, etc.,
had been completed very nearby within the preceding five years, It cost
$40,300., all costs, inciuuiag land. The church is probably the first (U.SL)
Wwork and a masterpiece of o.e of America's foremost architects, John Welch
182L-1694, skilled and imaginative in masterpieces of maay styles, whos:
national reputation is nows being revived. ielch came to Hewark from Scote
land in 1650 and began the High Strest Church ia that year. Within several
years, he had completed L-5 other exceptionally notable Newark works before
achieviag additional natioawide fame elszahere., Ordiaarily working separe-
ately, he, nonetheless was related to Richard Upjoha on 2 Wewark subjects
in the 1850's, as told in the biography of Richard Upjoha by Everard
Upjohn, a source also of the fact that Welch was 1 of the 13 charter A,I.A.
Members at the Institute's founding meeting in Upjoha's office.

Carrere and Hastiags, U.{.C., who designed the 1890 addition also did the
aoted New York Public Library, the U.S., Senate and House Office Builudings,
The Jational Amphitheater of Arliagtoa Memorial Cemetery, (Continued)
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Brooklyn Eagle,
Newark Daily Auvertissr,

Obituary of John delch, 11/22/189)

Article on cornerstone of church, 9/3/1650,
article oa church dedication, 5/19/1652 '

New York Times, Obituary of Joha Welch, 11/22/189

Schnall, Kenneth B. A 1965 Thesis, "19th Century Churches of Newark",
on file in Newark Public Library, Newark, New Jersey.
Stanton, P.B. The Gothic Revival and American Church Arc

297.

hitecture, page

LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE COORDINATES

LATITUDE AND LONGiTUb OORDINATES -

DEFINING A RECTANGLE LOCATING THE PROPERTY |0 DEFINING THE CENTER POINT OF A PROPERTY
R OF LESS THAN TEN ACRES
CORNER LATITUDE LONGITUDE LATITUDE LONGITUDE
Degrees Minutes Seconds | Degrees Minutes Seconds Degrees Minutes Seconds | Degrees Minutes Seconds
o . » o
Nw ° ' “| k0 ° L3+ 57 = |7 ¢ 10+ 52 -
NE o ’ » o . ”
SE o T » ° ’ »
SW o ‘ d o ’ ™
APPR :
PROXIMATE ACREAGE OF/M@‘AFFWERTY 1 acre
ILIST ALL STATES AND COUN FOR F?é!‘{ S OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES
STATE: A N CODE | COUNTY cobE
e, B o« N .
Fie T AN U Bl Z =
STATE: L, = e OOV —clobeE | counTy: copE
{g\ o= B2 I
STATE: ODE | COUNTY: CODE
A= oz [F
AT
vy
STATE: N Y1 cooe [ counTy: CODE

NAME AND TITLE

DJonald W, Geyer, Licensed professional plaaner & architecturs j ja
ORGANIZATION DATE .
9/71 -
STREET AND NUMBER:
351 Broad Street
CITY OR TOWN: . STATE CODE

As the designated State Liaison Officer for the Na-
tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law

89-665), I hereby nominate this property for inclusion
in the National Register and certify that it has been
evaluated according to the criteria and procedures’set
forth by the National Park Service. The recommended
level of significance of this nomination is:

National [ State [ Local %

Richard J/5ullivan

Title ommi ssion
Environmental Protection

3-/7- 72,

Date

- 1 hereby certify that this property is included in the
National Register. '

Chief, Office of Archeology and Higtoric Preservation

- 10 J1g/ 7

ATTEST:

Keeper of The ﬂational Regis

Date
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lattice of reticulated tracery fills the louvered wiidow which indicates the
beil chamber. Above a striagcourse of stone shich separates the upper section
of the tower sbout whers the orgaa is located is a small squars dripstoas cap=-
ped window. The church tower is Normaa in style but has some late Haglish
characteristics. A large wiadow with a thick dripstone and sill opens the
lower froat wall of the tower from about the poiat of the gable to a short disg
taace above the central door. Both windows aad Joor fill the distance be-
taeen the corner buttressiag. The ceatral window is a horizontal shape which
is broken by a reticulated tracery at the poiat of the ~iidow aad has a plate
tracery betweeci the mullions. A low2r ceatral door is made of wood aad is
banded with metal. It is set very deep within a recessed rouad molding. The
thickness of the wall at the base of the tower is clearly iadicated Jshile a
clsar distinction is made between the stoas walls and the stoae of the arched
doorway. Smaller windows similar in styls to the central windoss are set at
the froat walls of tha siue aisles and fill the wall area betseen the tower
aad the builuing's coraer buttressing. Ths fenestration of the windows in thg
#4all above the aave is set in aa evea row. The windows are set shallow in the
wall and are close to a carved parapet wall shich runs along the eaves, This
wall, w#hich brsaks the line of the long roof, is repeated on the lower side
aisle roof and, in fact, contimes round to the rear lacture hall, A porched
side eatrance at the west ead of the south aisle wall is made of stone aad hag
small front buttressing. It has a deep door and a wide stone coraice. The
buttresses in the side walls are off-set with long weather-plates. They ex-
tead almost the full length of the wall. «#iadows in the lower wall ars w~ide
aad have dripstoas coverings., They are set on a loag stringcourse and are sef
betweasn the side wall buttressings. The long striagcourse indicates the level
of the church's lower wall against the sloping ground level. A side stair
turret is located on the northwest coraesr of the tower aid ruas from the
grouad to the bell chamber. The turret provides sntraance to the orgaa loft.
A carved parapet wall of trefoil shape breaks the line of the coraice at the
side aisle roof betseen the side of the buildiag and the coraer buttressiag.
A similar parapet with a lo4 battlemeat opens the space at the top of the
tower betseen the corner pianacles. The nave is short and has a ceatral aislg.
Side aisles are located uader the losar side aisle roofs. The ceiliag is
wood with a low span in the form of a depressed arch aad is built over a

set of sevea small arched braces., This woodea ceiling is located uader the
cockloft #hich has a much steeper pitch., The aisle roofs have small ceiling
braces that rest on the side walls. Main beams aad priacipal rafters are
separated by gresa paiated panels against the lighter buff color of the
ceiliag board. 4indows ia the upper have walls are set deep in the wall so
that they suggest the wall depth, These wiadows provide a soft light
against the lov arched span of the ceiliag. rThe windows in the #alls of the
side aisles are set within those areas defined by the places in hich the
ceiling braces grip the walls., These large arched windows extead Jdowa to (Cop't)
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the Jooden wainscotting. The piers in the aave open the bays into wide sharp
poiated spans. £ach arch ia the nave arcaues are heavily setv with ball and
flower moldings which is in sharp coatrast to the flat side walls., A sease of
#idth is provided in tha short narrow aave by the wide bay openiags. walls in
the nave are plastered aad have beea paiated to look like an even cut stoae in
' a plumb bond., The focal poiat of the nave is the froat chaacel wall. A large
recessed arch rests withia a large low arch which is the shape of the wall. A
heavily carved rerados covers a good portion of the recess and rests on a mass;
sive pulpit stage with a c:atral lectern. The pulpit stage covers most of the.
space in the chaacel area but alloss some room for flanking amen pews. A
beach-like scat follows around the inside walls of the side aisles and pro-
vides more seating room in the nave., A side door located in the southwest
wall opens iato a small stone porch., The arched double wooden doors are set
Jithin an arched molding carved in a floral pattern. The front vestibule is
within the square toser aad provides entraace to the main aisle ia the nave,
This small room has a stone floor aand ceiling that is the floor of the organ
loft. A low doorsay in ths vestibule pro vides eatrance to the stair turret,
The heavy choir loft with a carved froat overhangs the front eatrance door
aad rests on two carved pillars that flank the center aisle."

The architectural interest of the church is heighteaed by the oddities and
ironies such as the fact, Jdiscovered upon closer re-examiaation, that Carrere
& Hastings! great but false traisept of 1690 replaced John Welch's great but
false "east Had" of 1850-52; that is, the "east ead" of Welch which appears
from the exterior as a superb Aaglicaa chaicel, was actually (as the congre-
gation was Presbyterian aid not Episcopal) used: "In the extension of the
building, behind the pulpit, are the lecture aad Sabbath School rooms con=-
venieatly arranged." This quote was in the Newark Daily Advertiser, 5/19/1853
The same refereace, in addition to various above quotations, also states:
"The entrances are through vestibules paved with rigured eacaustic tiles,

a matasrial receatly introuuced here." Parhaps by Frank #illa, arrived in
H.Y.C., in 1848, from Fredericton, N.B., who completed twso Newark churches

in 1849-50 (Christ, & House of Prayer) w#ho used tiles in his noted St. Aane's
Chapel aad Christ Church Cathedral, both Fredericton, (the latter ~ith .m.
Butterfield, aoted Briton who proceeded much farther eventually into polychromy).
See The Gothic Revival and Americaa Church Architecture, pages 13L-1L0 & 152
by Staaton.

Section 8: Continued

the McKinley Moaument in Buffalo, the Flagler buildiags of St. Augustiae,
Florida, Richmoad (Staten Island) Boro Hall, the City Halls of Pattersoa aand
Portland, Maiie, and the Ballantine Gates of Nesark's Braach Brook Park,
(Lake Street).

dalch did another masterpiece of som2 defianite Comparability to (Coatiaued)
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High Streat Presbyterian Church, Newark, the great St. John's Episcopal
Church on Broad Street in the heart of dowatowa HElizabeth, completed in 1860,
reflecting further progressioa from his "eacaustic tiles" of the floor of the
Newark church to other use of color variatioa or alteraatioa (polychromy) to
become more Victorian in a gradual maaner paralleling the gradual transition
of the great British architect, #illiam Butterfield. Among Welch's other
known works of great distinctioa are as follows: Halsey Street lethodist
Bpiscopal Church 1851-52, Greek Revival, demolished, Newark, New Jersey,
South Park Presbyterian Church 1853-55, 3reck Revival, Newsark, New Jersey.
Old 3t. Paul's Broad Strest Methodist gpiscopal Church 1854-56, Gothic,

after King's College Chapel, Cambridge, kngland, (coasulted R. Upjohn, dem-
olished). Newark Orphan Asylum, now Eberhardt Hall, Ne~ark Coll. of sagland
1857, Tudor-rlizabethan-Flemish, Newark National Baikiag Co. 1856-57, in
association with R. Upjoha, dJemolished. Brooklya Taberanacle, Dr. Talmage's
Tabernacle, 1872, famous Romanesque destroyed by fire in 1894, Brooklyn, New
York. First Baptist, Jilliamsburg, Lee Ave. now Congregational, 187k (?),
Victorian Gothic, Brooklyn, dew York., St. Luke's Ipiscopal Church, circa
1880's, Romanesque aad Gothic, Brooklyn, Jew York. All Saints' Episcopal
Church 7th Aveaue, Brooklyn, New York, 1889-92, Byzantine. welch worked in |
many other cities on churches, reportedly, is claimed as the early originator
of the amphitheater auditoriums for Protestant Churches, specifically after
Verona, Italy's famed Roman imphitheater aad presumably as one of the earliest
akroa plan architects. He died in 1894, The New York Times and Brooklyn
fagle cerried notabls obituaries, both dated 11/22/1594: '"once a noted
architect" and"dies in Myrtle Avenue Restaurant."

Congressional Representation

Peter 4. Rodino, Congressman (1Oth vistrict)
Clifford P, Case, U.S. Senator
Harrison A, williams, U,S. Senator




